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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good afternoon.

          3  I'm Joel Rivera, the Chair of the State and Federal

          4  Legislation Committee. Today we will be considering

          5  a preconsidered SLR which corresponds to S.5394-a

          6  and A.8718-A.  These bills apply to employees of the

          7  City of New York who were employed by the City from

          8  February 27, 1967, through July 12, 1972, but who

          9  through no negligence of their own did not become

         10  members of the New York City Employees Retirement

         11  System (NYCERS) at that time.

         12                 We've just been joined by Council

         13  Member Sears.

         14                 These employees would be deemed to

         15  have become NYCERS members on February 27, 1967.

         16                 We have another Preconsidered SLR,

         17  which corresponds to S.5474 and A.8861. These bills

         18  will provide the temporary retirement incentive that

         19  was available to NYCERS' members from July 11, 2002,

         20  until October 8, 2002, to those members who made an

         21  irrevocable decision to retire on June 11, 2002 with

         22  over 24 years of service credit in NYCERS without

         23  being aware of the additional credit they would have

         24  been eligible for had they retired a month later.

         25                 In addition to those pension bills,
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          2  we are also considering a bill that we refer to as

          3  the Cap Bill, a Mayor's message that corresponds to

          4  S.5607 and A.999. This legislation would cap the

          5  increase in the class share for property tax

          6  purposes at 2%, rather than the current State Law

          7  cap of 5%.

          8                 If we let the existing 5% cap remain,

          9  this would result in a significant increase in the

         10  average class 1 property owners' tax bill.  We will

         11  not be discussing the preconsidered SLR that

         12  corresponds to S.4179-A due to the lack of info on

         13  the actual penalty that would be imposed if this

         14  were to go into effect.  So we're going to be

         15  sending it back up to Albany for an amendment.

         16                 We have been joined by Council Member

         17  Helen Sears and Council Member Lou Fidler.

         18                 At this point in time we will be

         19  taking testimony from Pamela Silverblatt from Office

         20  of Labor Relations.

         21                 We have also been joined by Council

         22  Member Maria Baez.

         23                 Just State your name for the record

         24  and proceed with your testimony.  You may have to

         25  press the button in the middle.
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          2                 MS. SILVERBLATT:  My name is Pamela

          3  Silverblatt. I'm the First Deputy Commissioner at

          4  the Mayor's Office of Labor Relations.

          5                 Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen of

          6  the Committee, good afternoon.  I'm here to testify

          7  in opposition to the two pension SLRs that you have

          8  on.  The one that corresponds with A.8718 and the

          9  other one corresponds with A.8861.  We are opposed

         10  to these bills for the following reasons:

         11                 They are both, as we read them,

         12  one-person pension bills.  We, in general, believe

         13  that one-person pension bills do not set a good

         14  precedent.  They allow employees to not make

         15  decisions up front and to then decide on the back

         16  end whether they wish to join the pension system and

         17  that is a form of adverse selection.

         18                 It doesn't allow the systems to take

         19  the full benefit of contributions over the

         20  employee's employment life, and instead allows for

         21  retroactive and retrospective decisions.

         22                 In addition, given the City's current

         23  budget situation and fiscal situation, any further

         24  mandates to the system and increased pension costs

         25  at this time we believe place a burden on the system
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          2  that is unwarranted and inappropriate, and for those

          3  reasons, we would oppose to two single person

          4  pension bills.

          5            In addition, one of the bills that is up

          6  for your consideration, for the Committee's

          7  consideration, is extending a benefit, an early

          8  retirement benefit, that provides additional service

          9  credit to someone who retired before the early

         10  retirement program even opened and for those reasons

         11  we oppose the single person pension bills that are

         12  up for the Committee's consideration this afternoon.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Are there any questions on behalf of

         16  the Committee?  Thank you very much.

         17                 MS. SILVERBLATT:  Thank you for your

         18  time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next we'll be

         20  talking to Robert C. North, the Chief Actuary.

         21                 Thank you very much, Robert.

         22                 MR. NORTH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 I'm Robert C. North, Jr., the Actuary

         24  for the New York City retirement system. With me is

         25  David Lester, an actuary in my office.
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          2                 I'm here to comment on the two

          3  one-person bills.

          4                 I'll begin with 5394, State Assembly

          5  8418-A. First, in general when considering pension

          6  bills, the Actuary would encourage you to consider

          7  four items; are they technically correct? Clear in

          8  intent? Administrable? And do they meet the policy

          9  objectives?

         10                 On this particular bill, in the area

         11  of technical corrections, I'm not quite sure not

         12  being a lawyer whether this person exists as

         13  described in the bill.

         14                 Now, knowing it's an amendment of a

         15  named person earlier, I suspect that it would in

         16  fact pass, but let me point out that the bill

         17  describes the person who is employed by the City of

         18  New York, from February 27, 1967, to July 12th,

         19  1972. The person has already purchased service

         20  credit for the period February 27, 1967 to July

         21  19th, 1972. Second, the bill states it's an

         22  individual who returned to employment in 1985. To

         23  the best of our understanding, the return to

         24  employment was in January of 1986, and the bill

         25  suggests that thereupon, meaning 1985, the person
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          2  became a member of NYCERS. The person actually

          3  became a member of NYCERS in 1994. If we were to

          4  actually read this bill and apply the criteria

          5  listed, there is no such person in NYCERS who would

          6  benefit from the bill itself.

          7                 As I say, because it is probably an

          8  amendment to an already named person, I suspect that

          9  we would be able to figure out who it is intended to

         10  apply to, but this is a technically flawed bill.

         11                 Second, with respect to being clear

         12  and intent, it is clear that it does want to shift

         13  the individual back to a Tier 1 status, and it would

         14  be administrable, although there are a series of

         15  things the Administrators would have to figure out

         16  in order to deal with member contributions and so

         17  forth.

         18                 But most importantly is the policy

         19  objective issue, and being a one-person bill that

         20  does a lot of Tier 1 status to individual, to an

         21  individual who probably is not the only person

         22  situated. Someone who worked in the sixties, chose

         23  not to join NYCERS at the time, and then later came

         24  back, and I would point out chose not to join NYCERS

         25  a second time, until some time later in their
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          2  career. This is a fact pattern that is not that

          3  uncommon.

          4                 Part of the early 1990s, if you did

          5  not join NYCERS, you did not have to pay into the

          6  Social Security system, and it was not uncommon for

          7  people who weren't quite sure how long their career

          8  would be in government, to hold off until they

          9  determined that they may later prefer to, either

         10  they would stay in government, and then it would be

         11  worth it, or if they didn't stay in government, they

         12  saved Social Security taxes.

         13                 Now, I cannot say that that's

         14  applicable to this individual, but this fact pattern

         15  of an individual choosing not to join is not that

         16  uncommon, and, so, I would respectfully request that

         17  the Committee seriously consider, for both the

         18  technical and policy issues, not passing this bill.

         19                 Mr. Chairman, would you prefer me to

         20  answer questions on the individual ones, or go to

         21  the next one.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: On both.

         23                 MR. NORTH: With respect to Senate

         24  5474, Assembly 8861, again, following any points, I

         25  believe that technically this can work, it's clear
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          2  what it intends to do. We could administer it. But

          3  in terms of providing for an individual who retired

          4  on June 11th, 2002, the early retirement and senate

          5  provisions of chapter 69 of the laws of 2002, would

          6  be at odds with the usual intent of early retirement

          7  incentive laws which are to open a window period.

          8  The window period was from July 11, 2002 to October

          9  8th, 2002. The individual, as I say, retired on June

         10  11th, and it would generally not be considered

         11  either good policy or necessarily very fair to

         12  provide a benefit to an individual where I'm sure

         13  there are many others similarly situated who chose

         14  to retire and missed the period. And, again,

         15  therefore from the point of view of the Actuary,

         16  this would not be a good policy initiative on the

         17  part of the Council and we respectfully request your

         18  considering it in the negative.

         19                 I'll be glad to answer any questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you. Are

         21  there any questions on this?

         22                 Council Member Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, on the

         24  first item, I just want to be clear about something,

         25  your policy concerns aside, I'm understanding you're
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          2  saying that you don't believe the bill, the Albany

          3  legislation has correctly described the individual

          4  and the individual to receive the benefit.

          5                 Assuming that you're able to identify

          6  this individual, consider that these technical

          7  defects would prohibit you from actually applying

          8  the benefit that was intended.

          9                 MR. NORTH: I believe if we can figure

         10  out the individual, we could certainly calculate

         11  their benefit, and we certainly, I believe, can

         12  figure out who the individual is intended to be, but

         13  I would point out that the law as written describes

         14  a nonexistent person.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I guess my

         16  question wasn't all that precise. Having figured out

         17  that individual, will you, assuming this passes,

         18  confer the benefit?

         19                 MR. NORTH: If this bill passes, I

         20  will confer with Council on whether or not we should

         21  succeed.

         22                 I suspect their answer would be that

         23  we would take into the account the history of the

         24  legislation, and therefore grant the benefit. But I

         25  would have to say that at this point I can't tell
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          2  you positively that we would do that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All right. And

          4  in the event that you didn't confer the benefit,

          5  there would be no cost, no harm, no foul to the City

          6  of New York, correct?

          7                 MR. NORTH: That's true.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Because I

          9  would point out that, I'd point out that we have the

         10  difficulty at the moment and the Legislature is

         11  about to go out of session, and we can't possibly

         12  ask them to correct this bill and send it back so

         13  that the dates were more proper.

         14                 So, I just wanted to be sure that we

         15  wouldn't be costing the City money without

         16  conferring the benefit off on the person who was

         17  intended to be conferred if we passed it anyway.

         18                 So, your answer is no it wouldn't

         19  cost the City any money; that's correct?

         20                 MR. NORTH: Let me just say there

         21  would be no benefit cost if the benefit is not

         22  occurred.

         23                 There is of course the administrative

         24  cost of investigating, evaluating and determining

         25  whether or not to confer the benefit.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          4  much. We have been joined by Council Member Dilan

          5  who has requested the opportunity to vote on all

          6  items.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Mr. Chairman,

          8  thank you for your consideration. At this time I

          9  would like to vote aye on all items on today's

         10  calendar. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

         12                 Any other questions on behalf of the

         13  Committee?

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 MR. NORTH: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We will now hear

         17  from Michael Hyman from the New York City Department

         18  of Finance.

         19                 Proceed with your testimony.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER HYMAN: Good

         21  afternoon, Council members. My name is Michael

         22  Hyman, I am the Assistant Commissioner for Tax

         23  Policy of the New York City Department of Finance.

         24  On behalf of the Administration of Mayor Michael R.

         25  Bloomberg, I am here to testify in support of
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          2  Assembly 9000, Senate 5607, which would cap the

          3  growth and portion of the tax levy borne by a tax

          4  class of two percent.

          5                 State law requires New York City each

          6  year to adjust the share of the tax levy borne by

          7  each of the four classes of property to reflect the

          8  classes relative changes in market value from a base

          9  period. The market values are calculated using the

         10  equalization rates of each of the four tax classes

         11  issued by the State Office of Real Property

         12  Services.

         13                 This year the State's Board's class

         14  equalization rate would cause the burden for Class 1

         15  properties to increase comprised of one-, two-, and

         16  three-family homes to increase significantly.

         17                 This bill is intended to provide

         18  relief for Class 1 properties.

         19                 State law currently establishes that

         20  the current base proportion of any one class may not

         21  exceed the adjusted base proportion from that class

         22  for the prior year by more than five percent.

         23                 This legislation would adjust that

         24  rule for one year only to cap the maximum class

         25  growth at two percent for New York City.
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          2                 This change would reduce the amount

          3  by which Class 1 is allowed to grow, resulting in a

          4  tax rate increase of approximately 2.8 percent.

          5  Without the enactment of this legislation, the

          6  estimated tax rate increase in Class 1 would be 5.8

          7  percent.

          8                 In sum, the Administration supports

          9  this legislation in order to provide relief to Class

         10  1 property owners.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you. Are

         13  there any questions on behalf of the Committee?

         14                 Seeing none, thank you very much.

         15                 At this point in time I call forward

         16  to hear testimony from Kenneth W. Levitt.

         17                 Kenneth W. Levitt. Is Kenneth here? I

         18  guess not.

         19                 And Laura Held. Laura Held?

         20                 MS. HELD: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.

         22                 Thank you very much, Laura.

         23                 We have just been joined by Council

         24  Member Mike McMahon.

         25                 Proceed.
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          2                 MS. HELD: Good afternoon. My name is

          3  Laura Held. All of you saw me I believe it was just

          4  a week ago, so I'll try not to be repetitious. I'm

          5  sure some of my testimony will be a little

          6  repetitious.

          7                 I really appreciate that you're

          8  allowing me back to testify on the Department of

          9  Finance and Commissioner Martha E. Stark.

         10                 It is really important to me to have

         11  this opportunity, because I cannot urge you strongly

         12  enough to support this legislation.

         13                 As you know, the Mayor and the City

         14  Council have asked us all to serve the City as well

         15  as we can with as little as we can. The labor unions

         16  have challenged us to take advantage of the

         17  opportunities we have to contract in as much as

         18  possible, to stop using outside contractors. This

         19  legislation will accomplish both of those goals.

         20                 Right now we're using approximately

         21  220 contract lawyers to adjudicate parking tickets

         22  all over the City. Some of these contract workers

         23  are splitting their time between private practices

         24  and public services as administrative law judges.

         25                 Let me say, I'm sure many of you are
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          2  aware of the fact that the 18B rates are about to be

          3  raised substantially.

          4                 I can assure you that many of these

          5  same lawyers who work for us as administrative law

          6  judges will be scrambling, as well they should, and

          7  I support that raise in rates heartily, as I'm sure

          8  you do, but many of them will be further drawn away

          9  or cancel assignments to take those cases.

         10                 I have to tell you, what I think is

         11  the most compelling reason for passing this

         12  legislation happened to me this morning as I was

         13  leaving to come here. At 11:00 this morning, I

         14  stopped and asked a member of our calendar unit, how

         15  many cancellations have you gotten this morning?

         16  Just today how many ALJs have called in to say they

         17  can't make it, whether it was today or a time in the

         18  future? The answer was 20. Twenty different

         19  administrative law judges cancelled assignments this

         20  morning at 11:00.

         21                 Can you imagine what it's going to be

         22  by the end of today? Can you imagine how many people

         23  at the end of today are going to say we can't make

         24  it?

         25                 Do you know what that means for the
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          2  people who stand in line to have their tickets

          3  adjudicated? Do you realize how many people are

          4  doing that now because they're paying $105 fines?

          5  Because they don't want to pay those fines. They

          6  have a right to adjudicate their tickets. It's

          7  everyone' right to do that.

          8                 And we don't discourage that. But

          9  it's extremely discouraging when you have to wait on

         10  line for an hour or sometimes in the Bronx for an

         11  hour and a half, because people cancel, we wouldn't

         12  have that problem if we had regularly scheduled

         13  full-time and part-time administrative law judges.

         14                 The bill that's before you today

         15  would help Finance address all of these challenges.

         16  Unionized employees with civil service job

         17  protection are not likely to be swayed by any

         18  political or budgetary pressures when they're ruling

         19  on tickets. Certainly less so than per diem

         20  workers.  It's going to be easier to get civil

         21  servants to follow hearing guidelines that are

         22  needed to ensure that all New Yorkers are treated

         23  consistently and fairly. We want people to be

         24  treated in an even-handed manner, regardless of

         25  their appearance or their socioeconomic status or
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          2  any other factor that is irrelevant to the way their

          3  tickets are treated.

          4                 To do that, we need to have a civil

          5  service staff that works regularly scheduled hours

          6  so we can review guidelines with them and give them

          7  appropriate feedback.

          8                 We need to have a staff with

          9  regularly scheduled hours so we can also allow this

         10  last minute cancellation problem. It's just not

         11  fair. I understand that people, the attorneys who

         12  service ALJs, might wish to put their private

         13  practices in front of their public service. It's a

         14  natural instinct, but it doesn't serve the public

         15  and that's really what we're here to do. If we have

         16  a backlog in one of our offices and we want to

         17  provide extra staff, it's very difficult to work

         18  around these shifting schedules.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: If you can sum it

         20  up, Laura. Thank you.

         21                 MS. HELD: Certainly.

         22                 The most important point that I want

         23  to make is that recently someone had suggested that

         24  we were seeking to use non-lawyers, as

         25  administrative law judges. That is preposterous.
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          2                 However, we have amended the

          3  legislation to insert, and I have copies of it for

          4  you with me, to insert the language of admission to

          5  the bar anywhere that it was missing previously. I

          6  will hand copies off. The old original requirements

          7  for use of admission to the bar are in there, except

          8  for entry level positions. And that is so that we

          9  can create a career path and people can go from the

         10  civil service titles of agency attorney level one,

         11  all the way up to agency attorney level three.

         12  There's a wide range in salary. There's something to

         13  create a feeling of belonging to the Department of

         14  Finance in the City of New York, and there will be

         15  benefits, obviously for these people.

         16                 So, you know, this -- it was

         17  certainly never intended to eliminate attorney

         18  status. We do this job very seriously.

         19                 Are there any questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: No questions.

         21                 Actually, we do have a question from

         22  Council Member Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

         24                 MS. HELD: And, again, as I've been

         25  reminded, this will save the City a substantial
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          2  amount of money. It will save a million dollars, at

          3  least in the administrative costs alone for these

          4  people who have to handle the calendar, the

          5  cancellations, the payrolls and all of the costs of

          6  handling these per diem part-time workers.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Council Member

          8  Fidler.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, this is a

         10  difficult one for me on an emotional level. My

         11  father was one of these until in the last years

         12  before he died, one of the per diem workers at PVB,

         13  OJE, CAU, I mean he took a great deal of pride in

         14  doing that hearing work. So, I mean, I guess this is

         15  a little hard for me.

         16                 But I'm just concerned about this

         17  savings figure that you're throwing out.

         18                 Have you calculated in the cost in

         19  terms of fringe benefits, and other benefits for

         20  these employees in that saving?

         21                 MS. HELD: I'm joined by

         22  communications in customer service Director Sam

         23  Miller.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: I'm

         25  Assistant Commissioner at the Department of Finance.
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          2  My name is Sam Miller.

          3                 The fringe benefit costs do not

          4  factor into the million dollars, because fringe

          5  benefit costs are not on the agency's budget,

          6  they're on Citywide budget. That's number one.

          7                 The other thing is that I think some

          8  calculations have been made to suggest that all of

          9  the civil service employees who would be ALJs would

         10  work full-time, and that's not the case. Many

         11  people, many judges work part-time now, and many of

         12  them, we assume that many of them will want to work

         13  part time once this bill is passed, and of course if

         14  they're part time they wouldn't have the fringe.

         15                 So, the idea is to get people on

         16  regular schedules so that we can deal with backlogs

         17  when they arrive as opposed to having to deal with

         18  per diems who cancel at the last minute and then we

         19  can't fill backlogs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: The people

         21  that I rely on for this information are shaking

         22  their head that it's not true, that they work

         23  part-time, that there isn't a fringe benefit cost.

         24                 I would also point out to you that it

         25  may not go against the Finance Department Budget,
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          2  but it comes from the taxpayers of the City of New

          3  York and gets absorbed in another part of the

          4  budget. And, so, I mean it makes very little sense

          5  for me to hear that Finance will save a million

          6  dollars but the taxpayers will not, because

          7  ultimately it's a zero sum game, right?

          8                 So, I would not want to do this,

          9  unless I know the City is saving net money, whether

         10  it's in the Finance budget or in someone else's

         11  budget. Have you calculated now with the cost

         12  benefits how much money the City will save?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:

         14  Actually, the savings is going to be more than a

         15  million dollars and I'll tell you why. The budget

         16  for the administrative law judges had been about $8

         17  million. We've already achieved about a million and

         18  a half dollars in savings. What we said in the

         19  legislation is that we pay, we spend $6.4 million

         20  right now just on the judges. We think we're going

         21  to be able to spend $5.4 million, and that doesn't

         22  even include the savings that we're going to get

         23  from the calendaring function.

         24                 Right now we have 12 people who are

         25  doing calendaring and also payroll for per diems,
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          2  they can't be on the regular system because they

          3  don't work regular hours. We haven't even factored

          4  that into our budget peg. So, we're going to

          5  probably save more than a million but the budget

          6  says a million, that we know we're going to save at

          7  least that much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Why do you

          9  think it's going to cost you 5.4 instead of 6.4? I

         10  mean, what's the thought process here? Because we

         11  have 220 per diem judges now, we're going to

         12  probably have about 105 full-time equivalents, and

         13  we're not going to have to overbook. Maybe I can let

         14  the chief judge address this as well.

         15                 I mean, we're not going to have to

         16  overbook judges because we're afraid that people are

         17  going to cancel at the last second.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, you

         19  overbook and then they cancel you don't pay them.

         20                 MS. HELD: That's correct, we don't

         21  pay them.

         22                 May I make a point about part-time?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I think you

         24  need to put your microphone back on, yes.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: Here,
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          2  use this.

          3                 MS. HELD: The point you made about

          4  part-time ALJs and benefits. I believe it's 21, if

          5  you worked 21 hours or more, and by the way, a

          6  number of people have asked about part-time work,

          7  and we will use, of course, a lot of the people who

          8  are presently serving as ALJs, because we need an

          9  experienced pool.

         10                 At any rate it's 21 hours or more

         11  that entitles people to benefits. I know that we

         12  have a number of people who would like to work three

         13  days a week, and a number of people who would like

         14  to work two days a week, and a lot of these people

         15  are people who want to be home with their children.

         16                 The people who work two days a week

         17  will clearly not receive benefits. Anyone who works

         18  three days a week would work 21 hours and presumably

         19  would get benefits. So, there's a savings there, in

         20  terms of fringe. And I understand your point about

         21  the benefits and the City pays for them one way or

         22  another.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I'm sure a

         24  number of your semi-retired attorneys are going to

         25  want to work two or three days a week as well.
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          2                 MS. HELD: Absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But in

          4  reaching this calculation that you're going to save

          5  a million dollars, have you -- I mean, what

          6  percentage of that $5.4 million workforce do you

          7  assume is going to be eligible for benefits, and

          8  what's the cost of their benefits?

          9                 MS. HELD: Well, I'm not sure I

         10  understand what you mean.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: What

         12  percentage are you estimating are actually going to

         13  be entitled to benefits based on the amount of time

         14  they're working. Some of them will opt not to,

         15  they'll work two days a week or less than 21 hours

         16  and then they're not going to get benefits, we're

         17  not going to have to pay them benefits. I'm trying

         18  to figure out, do you think half of them,

         19  three-quarter, five-eighths? And how much is that

         20  going to cost? Because I want to know how much of

         21  this million dollars is actually going to be saved

         22  before we reinvent the wheel?

         23                 MS. HELD: One estimate is that half

         24  of the ALJs would be part time. You know, we won't

         25  know that until we do the actual hiring.
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          2                 I would like to emphasize to

          3  everyone, however, that while cost-savings is an

          4  important part of this legislation, the real aim is

          5  to serve people who are contesting these very

          6  expensive parking tickets better than we can do now.

          7                 You know, cost savings would be

          8  great. In the scheme of things, perhaps a million

          9  dollars isn't that much money. But the really

         10  important part of this legislation is to see that

         11  people, angry in the first place over having to pay

         12  a ticket of that magnitude, don't get angrier,

         13  because they're sitting in a room --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I don't mean

         15  to be rude and interrupt you, but you're not

         16  answering the question I asked.

         17                 I understand the aim. I don't

         18  disagree, okay, and I certainly am very familiar,

         19  you know, having really lived, you know, with my

         20  father's stories with this, with how this works and

         21  why what your suggesting makes a great deal of

         22  sense. But what I'm not getting is an answer to the

         23  question I asked, if half of them are going to be

         24  full-time they're certainly going to be receiving

         25  benefits.
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          2                 MS. HELD: Absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And that's

          4  going to have a cost to the City. A certain

          5  percentage of the other half are going to work

          6  sufficiently part-time to be eligible for benefits

          7  as well. Having picked a number in the air that you

          8  in your experience think is a reasonable number for

          9  the amount of people that are going to continue to

         10  be employed or get employment and get benefits,

         11  what's the benefit cost? How much is it going to

         12  cost the City of New York, albeit not in the

         13  Department of Finance's budget, how much is it going

         14  to cost the City of New York, how much are we

         15  actually saving?

         16                 MS. HELD: All I can tell you, sir, is

         17  that this has been assessed by the Commissioner with

         18  OMB who signed onto this early on.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So then there

         20  must be someone here from OMB then who can tell me

         21  how much the benefit cost is. Mr. Chairman, is there

         22  someone here from OMB?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Since we actually

         24  are not going to be voting on this issue today, they

         25  just decided to join us today to add testimony. What
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          2  I'm going to do now is ask for a vote on the

          3  Committee before we move forward.

          4                 Actually, Council Member Sears has a

          5  question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: My question is,

          7  there seems to be a lot of discrepancy here, are you

          8  focusing on having a more efficient system, which if

          9  there are some dollars that are saved we reap the

         10  benefits of that?

         11                 I would think the efficient system

         12  would weigh far more heavily than the dollars. So,

         13  what is your major thrust?

         14                 MS. HELD: Efficiency and customer

         15  service is certainly our major thrust.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And any savings

         17  would be an additional benefit?

         18                 MS. HELD: Absolutely. Thank you for

         19  phrasing it perhaps better for me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: All right, thank

         21  you very much, Laura.

         22                 Before we hear the next testimony I

         23  would like to call for a vote on the actual items

         24  that we are going to be voting on today, which are

         25  preconsidered SLR in reference to S.5394-A, and
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          2  A.8718-A, as well as SLR 103 and preconsidered

          3  Mayoral Message. Those are the only items that we'll

          4  be voting on here today, and I will ask the clerk to

          5  call the roll.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Chairman,

          7  before you do that, on the preconsidered Mayoral

          8  Message, I would ask to be listed as a co-sponsor to

          9  that item. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Fantastic.

         11                 Go forward.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         13  can you just repeat what it is we're voting on?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes. We are only

         15  voting on the preconsidered SLR with reference to

         16  S.5394-A, and A.8718-A. That's an actual established

         17  date of commencement of membership so certain

         18  individuals in New York City Employees Retirement

         19  System as well as SLR 103, and the preconsidered

         20  Mayoral message.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, on the

         22  agenda it's items one, two and three.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes. One, two and

         24  three, correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: See, I was
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          2  able to figure that out.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.

          4                 Thank you. Move forward.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I wish the cap

         13  could be lower, but I'll vote aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye on all, and

         18  I would like to be a sponsor on the preconsidered

         19  Mayor's vote.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: May I just

         22  add one comment, Mr. Chairman? And it's my annual

         23  statement.

         24                 It's my understanding that we just

         25  voted for a $46 million tax break for homeowners in

                                                            32

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  the City of New York?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

          6  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          7  abstentions, the items are adopted.

          8                 The vote will be held open by request

          9  of the chairman, and Council members, please sign

         10  the Committee report.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Now we do have one piece of testimony

         14  that's in opposition to ALJs. Kenneth W. Levitt, if

         15  you would like to proceed forward?

         16                 MR. LEVITT: Yes. Good morning, Mr.

         17  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is

         18  Kenneth Levitt. I'm President of the Association of

         19  Administrative Law Judges in the Parking Violations

         20  Bureau. I am an attorney in private practice in the

         21  City of New York. I am a former Assistant Attorney

         22  General of the State of New York.

         23                 It is an honor to be here today to

         24  speak to you on behalf of the administrative law

         25  judges of the City of New York, we strongly oppose
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          2  passage of this bill, which is A.8696 and Senate

          3  Bill 5349.

          4                 There are several reasons why the

          5  administrative law judges oppose the passage of this

          6  bill. Our first and foremost reason is the fact we

          7  believe this bill will deprive the public of a level

          8  playing field, if and when employees of the

          9  Department of Finance collect the City revenues,

         10  also made responsible for the adjudication of

         11  summonses.

         12                 If passed, the PVB, the Parking

         13  Violations Bureau will no longer be a quasi judicial

         14  tribunal as it was originally meant to be in 1972

         15  when the PVB was created.

         16                 Secondly, the City claims it will

         17  save $1 million under the bill, and we've heard

         18  considerable colloquy about that issue.

         19                 They believe that by replacing an

         20  estimated 220 independent contractors, which is how

         21  we're defined under the statute, with 80 to 90

         22  full-time employees, they believe that they will

         23  save a million dollars.

         24                 We do not understand how this saving

         25  is possible. The 220 independent contractors now
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          2  filling these assignments do not take home any

          3  benefits whatever. The average judge probably works

          4  about two days a week. I'm not sure of that, but

          5  it's approximately two days a week.

          6                 The City now has a work force in

          7  place. None of us have to be paid, given any sick

          8  time, no health leave, no health insurance, we have

          9  no right to participate in New York City pension

         10  fund, and of course there's no workers compensation

         11  insurance.

         12                 If the part-time judges are suddenly

         13  fired or replaced by 87, which is a number I had

         14  heard in the memo, full-time judges who have no

         15  experience should now increase the headcount of the

         16  City's workforce, and you have to pay them a full

         17  array of benefits.

         18                 Now, I just heard the Chief Judge

         19  mention the fact that approximately one-half of the

         20  judges who would be hired would be part-time judges.

         21  This is the first time I've heard that.

         22                 The memos that I've seen and every

         23  conversation I've heard have said that they were

         24  going to have a workforce of 80 to 90 full-time

         25  judges and a smattering of part-time judges, be it
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          2  ten, 20, I'm not sure, depending on what they

          3  needed. So, this is news to me, I must say. And

          4  nowhere in any of the memos have I seen any

          5  description or discussion of how they arrive at a $1

          6  million savings and how they account for the

          7  benefits that they would have to pay.

          8                 Because you're talking about on the

          9  average the City pays about $55,000 annually for

         10  each City worker, just for health insurance, to

         11  cover every City worker on the average per year.

         12                 Once unionized, which could well

         13  happen, these employees will also be entitled to

         14  supplemental welfare benefits from the City of New

         15  York which amounts to about $1,400 a year per

         16  person.

         17                 Also, as full-time judges, once they

         18  become vested in the New York City pension system,

         19  down the road each and every one of your judges,

         20  once they reach retirement, will be able to collect

         21  well over $100,000. Whatever the fee is, I don't

         22  have the number at my disposal, but it just doesn't

         23  make any sense, the numbers don't add up.

         24                 We think it is unlikely that the City

         25  will have any savings at all under this bill, in the
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          2  short term or the long term.

          3                 Next, the City now has the best of

          4  both worlds, why change.

          5                 They have to fill assignments in five

          6  boroughs, it can draw on a pool of 220 experienced

          7  independent contractors who get no benefits, and by

          8  the way, have no right to unionize.

          9                 A small percentage of the per diem

         10  judges do have an active law practice. However, the

         11  majority of the judges do not have an active law

         12  practice. They work per diem because they have the

         13  flexibility that allows them to meet their family

         14  responsibilities, or they work for other City

         15  agencies.

         16                 These ALJs are proud of their public

         17  service and many have loyally served in the bureau

         18  for over ten years. Like myself, I've served for

         19  about 12 years for the bureau. They gained valuable

         20  experience and had to handle irate motorists who

         21  always resent high fines and high tow fees.

         22                 Yet, the bill would summarily

         23  terminate all of these independent contractors,

         24  would place them with much younger employees who

         25  lack any such experience. The big advantage here
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          2  under the present system is that when and if an ALJ

          3  doesn't do his job confidently or professionally, he

          4  or she can be fired at will by the City of New York

          5  without a hearing. The power to fire at will for

          6  almost any reason protects the government and it

          7  protects the public from any hint of corruption or

          8  improper behavior by ALJs.

          9                 In fact, in the middle of 1990s this

         10  was invaluable because we had an example. We had

         11  three judges in the Bronx PVB who were involved in

         12  some questionable behavior, when they were

         13  challenged and they were asked to explain why they

         14  dismissed tickets, three of them were summarily

         15  terminated. One of them was criminally prosecuted by

         16  the Bronx DA's office.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: If I could ask

         18  you to sum up, because we do have other committees.

         19                 MR. LEVITT: Okay. Let me just jump

         20  ahead.

         21                 The 20 people who were cancelled, the

         22  Chief judge mentioned the 20 people this morning, I

         23  spoke to members of the calendar unit myself

         24  yesterday, they tell me on the average their

         25  cancellation was about eight to ten Citywide a day.
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          2  Ten years ago, the calendar unit which takes care of

          3  cancellation consisted of one person, Jeffrey

          4  Panish. He did a very effective for five years all

          5  by himself. He also said ten cancellations was the

          6  average.

          7                 The City has a hearing by mail unit,

          8  consisting of about 20 to 30 judges.  Every day

          9  right now in on John Street there's 20 to 30 judges

         10  sitting there. Any time there's a cancellation, you

         11  move them from the hearing by mail unit, you send

         12  them on the subway, send them to Brooklyn or Staten

         13  Island, or wherever they have to go.

         14                 So, that's a red herring. It's a

         15  total red herring, the issue about cancellation and

         16  scheduling. Right now the calendar unit consists of

         17  four people, a year ago it was eight people.

         18  Obviously the City knows how to cope with that

         19  issue. I think that's a total red herring.

         20                 Finally, and I'll try to sum up, Mr.

         21  Chairman, our biggest objection is that this will

         22  sure, we believe, under the new bill, the bill will

         23  surely erode the discretion of independence of the

         24  attorneys who conduct hearing for PVB. As

         25  independent contractors, our job is to apply the law
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          2  to the particular facts in front of us and exercise

          3  discretion in the interest of justice.

          4                 Under this bill there's a real danger

          5  that priorities will change.

          6                 As the full-time employees implement

          7  agency policy, their first loyalty won't be to the

          8  interest of justice to the public, but their first

          9  loyalty will be to the agency to carry out agency

         10  policy. That's a very real danger.

         11                 Back in fact when the tribunal was

         12  set up as a quasi judicial tribunal in 1972, the

         13  statute specifically said in Section 236 with the

         14  VT, vehicle and traffic law, that hearing examiners

         15  shall not be considered employees in the City of New

         16  York in which the administrative tribunal is set up,

         17  and the purpose of that is to allow due process to

         18  take place so that the individual isn't having a

         19  hearing in front of an employee of the City of New

         20  York.

         21                 The New York State Bar Association,

         22  by the way, took a position on this back in the year

         23  2000 when discussing the same issue with regard to

         24  the Department of Motor Vehicles, and they held that

         25  out of respect for the citizens right to a fair
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          2  hearing before an objective fact finder

          3  quote/unquote, that they impose having employees of

          4  the DMV administer the hearing.

          5                 Finally, let me just make one quick

          6  point.

          7                 The City now speaks about having

          8  uniformity and consistency of decision-making. But

          9  that is really another red herring, because the goal

         10  of the administrative law judge is always to give a

         11  fair and impartial hearing geared to the specific

         12  facts.

         13                 A hearing is not to carry out policy

         14  but really to give a fair hearing based on specific

         15  facts and to serve the interest of justice.

         16                 The motorists who come before us are

         17  entitled to no less, the taxpayers are entitled to

         18  fair treatment and a fair hearing and due process.

         19                 If the bill is passed, we feel the

         20  hearing examiners will be under tighter control by

         21  the City and the public is only going to suffer.

         22                 That's how we feel about it.

         23                 Due process protection for motorists

         24  should never be sacrificed or diluted even to save a

         25  few dollars.
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          2                 We ask the City Council to consider,

          3  is it good government to overhaul a system that now

          4  works for the public at a minimal savings to the

          5  City.

          6                 We would therefore urge the Council

          7  not to support the bill.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Before Council Member Fidler asks a

         11  question, I would like to call Council Member

         12  Gentile for a vote on today's SLRs and

         13  preconsidereds.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye on all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

         16                 Council Member Fidler, you have a

         17  question?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Levitt, I

         19  guess you'll be surprised by my questions because I

         20  was somewhat tough on Ms. Held. I guess it's a

         21  little dangerous to have a member of the Council of

         22  the Committee who has such a familiarity with this

         23  world asking these questions.

         24                 Isn't it a fact that a per diem

         25  employee is much, much more concerned about deciding
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          2  against the agency than a full time civil servant

          3  employee?

          4                 Isn't it a fact that if a per diem

          5  judge rules consistently in favor of the motorist

          6  and against the agency that the likelihood that they

          7  will be called in to serve again or repeatedly or as

          8  much as others, you know, that they won't be called

          9  in?

         10                 MR. LEVITT: Well, the fact of the

         11  matter is that we are given guidelines. We are given

         12  guidelines on how to apply the law and how to look

         13  at the law, but the ultimate determination for us is

         14  to make a determination based on the facts. So, any

         15  time we have a fact situation in front of us, the

         16  judges have to make a -- we have to make a rational

         17  decision based on the facts in front of us and apply

         18  the law to the facts.

         19                 Obviously, if a judge is not doing

         20  his job properly and he's not evaluating the law

         21  properly, not giving a fair hearing, he doesn't

         22  deserve to be a judge.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Council Member

         24  Monserrate would like the opportunity to vote.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.
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          2                 Mr. Chair, I vote aye on all items. I

          3  request to be excused, there are other Committee

          4  meetings that I have across the street.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          6  much. The vote is now nine in the affirmative and

          7  zero in the negative.

          8                 Proceed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Not to beat it

         10  into the ground, but that same statement of

         11  principal would apply to an administrative law judge

         12  whether they were a civil service employee, or a per

         13  diem employee, that their obligation is to

         14  administer justice, and my point to you, and I know

         15  this is a fact. So, I mean, you can dispute it or

         16  not, but I know that it is somewhere in the back of

         17  a per diem judge's mind that if he rules

         18  consistently against the agency he's not getting

         19  called back.

         20                 MR. LEVITT: Well, I don't know that

         21  that's a fact.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I do.

         23                 MR. LEVITT: But I mean it sounds like

         24  a theory that probably could be true. But I mean the

         25  fact of the matter is, if that judge is not
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          2  properly, isn't given due process and if it isn't

          3  allowing the motorist to have a fair hearing,

          4  that's, you know, he shouldn't be a judge.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: A civil

          6  service judge or a per diem judge.

          7                 MR. LEVITT: I think the danger there

          8  is that as soon as you become an employee of this

          9  City, right now they give us guidelines. Are they

         10  mandatory? I would say not. But they're guidelines.

         11  They're just guidelines on how to handle or how to

         12  apply the law, interpretations of the law, that the

         13  City would like us to apply, okay, once you become a

         14  City employee, it's much more likely that they will

         15  look over the shoulders of the judges, they will

         16  insist in the training programs, for examples, that

         17  the judges learn these policies and apply these

         18  policies consistently, in the interest of uniformity

         19  of decision-making. And that's what my complaint and

         20  my view is that as soon as you start worrying about

         21  uniformity of fines and uniformity of

         22  decision-making, you take out the individual nature

         23  of each hearing, because every individual hearing

         24  should be geared to the specific facts of that

         25  hearing.
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          2                 So, again, I think the danger is when

          3  you allow the City to have full-time employees, I

          4  think the danger is that the City will have a much

          5  stronger hold over the behavior of the judges than

          6  they do now, and that's how I see it. I understand

          7  why you don't agree with that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Levitt, in

          9  deference to my colleagues, I'm not going to beat it

         10  into the ground, but the fact of the matter is, and

         11  it is a fact, that I think the City has a much

         12  greater hold over per diem judges than they would

         13  over civil service judges, for the very reason that

         14  you cited in your testimony they can be summarily

         15  dismissed, even more than that, they don't have to

         16  be called back.

         17                 I mean, for all of us sports fans, I

         18  know that the owners don't pick arbitrators who rule

         19  in favor of the players, the same thing I know is in

         20  the mind of per diem ALJs and PVB, OJE, CAU, I know,

         21  because I lived with one.

         22                 MR. LEVITT: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, it is

         24  always in the back of your mind.

         25                 MR. LEVITT: I would just say this as
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          2  a final comment, that if the ALJ is giving a hearing

          3  to the public, a motorist, he has to be able to

          4  justify his decisions, okay? They're supposed to be

          5  justified based on the facts of the law. If the City

          6  in reviewing him said we don't agree with your

          7  decision, and yet they're justifiable on the facts

          8  of that particular ticket, then the City should not

          9  be terminating him, because he can justify his

         10  decision based on a rational basis, and therefore

         11  the City would be, in it's inappropriate for the

         12  City to terminate judges who act on a sound legal

         13  basis, that's the problem, and then the City starts

         14  behaving on that kind of behavior we're all in

         15  trouble. Then the City is really going to be running

         16  a show and hopefully that's not what's going to

         17  happen.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Chairman,

         19  I, you know, as you can see from my questioning, I'm

         20  conflicted on this bill. And I would hope that when

         21  it does come back for a vote, we'll have an answer

         22  from OMB as to what the costs are when we include

         23  fringe benefits, so we know whether or not we are

         24  looking at a bill that is going to save money, or

         25  whether we're looking at a bill that is going to
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          2  cost money. Because that possibility has not been

          3  eliminated; and if so, whether or note the policy

          4  justifies the extra cost. Because to me, that issue

          5  is very important. I mean, if we're saving money,

          6  that's one thing, if we're going to have to pay

          7  through the privilege of this reform, I'm not so

          8  sure it's a reform. So, I hope we'll have an answer

          9  from OMB. Not from Finance, from OMB.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We'll work it

         11  out.

         12                 Thank you very much. And this hearing

         13  is recessed.

         14                 MR. LEVITT: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

         16                 (Hearing recessed at 1:20 p.m.)
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